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«KIMI™ AyauT» xayankepwiniri KPMG Audit LLC

LLUEeKTeyri CepikTecTik 180 Dostyk Avenue, Almaty,
KasakctaH, 050051, AnmaTsbl, 050051, Kazakhstan,
HocTeik g-nbl, 180, E-mail: company@kpmg.kz

Ten.: +7 (727) 298-08-98

Independent Auditors’ Report
To Management of Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Joint Venture South Mining Chemical
Company LLP (the “Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2018, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Republic of Kazakhstan, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends fo liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Tik, Weeruapra 3aHHamacs! GorsiHwa Tiprenrern KPMG International
anap HENICIHIH MY

«KMME Aygums XIUC, Kasakeranaa Tipk
Cooperative (‘KPMG Intemational”)

epLuiniri WwekTeyn cepl
TiH KPMG Taye

KPMG Audit LLC, a company incorporated under the Laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan, & member firm of the KPMG network of independent
member firms affiliated with KPMG Intemational Cooperative ("KPMG [nternational’), a Swiss entity
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Independent Auditors’ report
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errcr, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is:

Sergey Denﬁen ye/é
Certified Audltor

Auditor’'s Qualification Certifi cate
No. M®-0000086 of 27 August 2012

KPMG Audit LLC
State Licence to conduct aud:t # 0000021 dated 6 December 2006 issued by the Ministry
S.t S Y Ay &)

Sergey Dementyev
General Director of KPMG Audit Iff‘_
acting on the basis of the Charter

31 January 2019
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2018

‘000 KZT Note 2018 2017*
Revenue 5 54,055,704 51,181,124
Cost of sales 6 (22,228,302) (25,011,968)
Gross profit 31,827,402 26,169,156
Distribution expenses 7 (1,603,005) (1,104,211)
Administrative expenses 8 (964,220) (910,626)
Other expenses, net (177,017) (317,396)
Results from operating activities 29,083,160 23,836,923
Finance income 10 2,148,587 158,895
Finance costs 10 (253,516) (186,129)
Net finance income/(costs) 1,895,071 (27,234)
Profit before income tax 30,978,231 23,809,689
Income tax expense 11 (6,062,548) (5,085,937)
Profit for the year 24,915,683 18,723,752
Other comprehensive income

Items that will never be reclassified to profit or

loss:

Equity investments at FVOCI — net change in fair

value (71,360) -
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax (71,360) -
Total comprehensive income for the year 24,844,323 18,723,752

* The Company has initially applied IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under the transition
methods chosen, comparative information is not restated (see Note 3(a)).

These financial statements were approved by management on 31 January 2019 and were signed on
its behalf by:

Churina Ye.S.
Chief Accountant

Yessentugelov T.A.
General Director

6
The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the notes to,
and forming part of, the financial statements set out on pages 10 to 44.
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‘000 KZT

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Mine development assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

VAT receivable
Restricted cash

Deferred tax asset

Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Charter capital

Other provisions

Retained earnings

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Site restoration provision
Total non-current assets

Current liabilities

Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Dividends payable

Other financial liabilities
Income tax payable

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

* The Company has initially applied IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under the transition
methods chosen, comparative information is not restated (see Note 3(a)).

These financial statements were approved by management on 31 January 2019 and were signed on

y

its behalf by:

Yessentugelov T.A.
General Director

Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2018

Note

12
13

14
11

15
16
17

18

19
20

19
21
18
22

31 December

31 December

2018 2017*
20,261,391 17,629,746
12,289,751 14,013,863

148,486 161,863
3,319,935 1,790,038
2,232,922 1,923,540

425,553 184,328

583,326 747,002

39,261,364 36,450,380

4,000,176 4,411,541
19,996,471 21,919,526

5,389,541 1,253,884
29,386,188 27,584,951
68,647,552 64,035,331

64,000 64,000

(237,386) -
24,845,061 18,723,752
24,671,675 18,787,752

4,468,853 .

3,160,912 2,561,365

7,629,765 2,561,365

528,938 .

7,087,185 4,574,882

27,800,640 33,076,888
- 4,624,910

929,349 409,534
36,346,112 42,686,214
43,975,877 45,247,579
68,647,552 64,035,331

Churina Ye.S.
Chief Accountant

The statement of financial position-is-to ¢ read in conjunction with the notes to, and forming part of,

financial statements set out on pages 10 to 44,

the
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‘000 KZT
At 1 January 2017

Total comprehensive
income

Profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Transactions with
owners of the Company

Dividends declared
At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2018*

Adjustment on initial
application of IFRS 9

Adjusted balance
at 1 January 2018

Total comprehensive
income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive
income

Equity investments at
FVOCI — net change in
fair value

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Transactions with
owners of the Company

Dividends declared
At 31 December 2018

Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2018

Retained
Charter capital Other reserves earnings Total
64,000 - 30,076,888 30,140,888
- - 18,723,752 18,723,752
- - 18,723,752 18,723,752
- - (30,076,888) (30,076,888)
64,000 - 18,723,752 18,787,752
64,000 - 18,723,752 18,787,752
- (166,026) (70,622) (236,648)
64,000 (166,026) 18,653,130 18,551,104
- - 24,915,683 24,915,683
- (71,360) - (71,360)
- (71,360) 24,915,683 24,844,323
- - (18,723,752) (18,723,752)
64,000 (237,386) 24,845,061 24,671,675

* The Company has initially applied IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under the transition
methods chosen, comparative information is not restated (see Note 3(a)).

These financial statements were approved by management on 31 January 2019 and were signed on

its behalf by:

Yessentugelov T.A.
General Director

e r

The statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to, and forming part of, the
financial statements set out on pages 10 to 44.

Churina Ye.S.
Chief Accountant

8
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2018

‘000 KZT

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers

Other receipts

Proceeds from VAT refund

Payments to employees

Other payments

Advances paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Payments under insurance contracts

Payments to the budget

Cash flows from operating activities before income tax and
interest paid

Income tax paid

Interest paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Receipt of liquidation fund from JV Betpak Dala LLP (Note 25(b))
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of intangible assets

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and mine development
assets

Bank deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Transaction costs related to loans and borrowings

Payment of dividends (net of withholding tax in the amount of
KZT 840,000 thousand (2017: KZT 585,207 thousand))
Repayment of notes

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents
Effect of movements in ECL on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December (Note 17)

2018 2017*
56,418,279 48,413,076
185,145 38,191
1,066,483 488,841
(2,765,311) (2,781,870)
(1,209,970) (1,500,355)
(11,450) (6,848)
(11,739,406) (10,222,943)
(91,774) (93,057)
(5,336,073) (7,226 477)
36,515,923 27,108,558
(5.783,958) (4,080,750)
(2,584) -
30,729,381 23,027,808
. 1,207,320
4,290 «
(19,028) (35,781)
(4,034,943) (6,283,299)
(336,874) (1,498,505)
(4,386,555) (6,610,265)
4,824,040 “
(14,843) .
(23,160,000) (16,134,995)
(4,624,138) (100,296)
(22,974,941) (16,235,291)
3,367,885 182,252
1,253,384 1,160,434
769,445 (88,802)
(1,673) ]
5,389,541 1,253,884

* The Company has initially applied IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under the transition
methods chosen, comparative information is not restated (see Note 3(a)).

These financial statements were approved by management on 31 January 2019 and were signed on

its behalf by:

Yessentugelov T.A.
General Director

oy

Churina Ye.S.
Chief Accountant

9

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to, and forming part of, the financial

statements set out on pages 10 to 44.
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Reporting entity
Organisation and operations

Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP (the “Company™) was incorporated on
1 August 2014 under the laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan. On 17 October 2014 National Atomic
Company “Kazatomprom” JSC (hereinafter, “NAC KAP”) transferred the subsoil use rights in
accordance with the Addendum No.4 to the Exploration and Production Contract No.1800 on the
block 4 of Inkai deposit, and Addendum No.7 to the Exploration and Production Contract No.647 on
Akdala deposit (hereinafter, the “Contracts”) to the Company. The subsoil use contract for Akdala
deposit is valid for 25 years, starting from 28 March 2001. The subsoil use contract for block 4 of
Inkai deposit is valid for 24 years, starting from 8 July 2005.

Previously the Contracts as well as all mine development assets and property, plant and equipment
for uranium extraction and primary processing were owned by JV Betpak Dala LLP, a related party.
During 2014, according to the court decision, JV Betpak Dala LLP’s contractual subsoil use rights
were revoked and returned to the original owner — NAC KAP; all respective contractual mine
development assets were acquired from JV Betpak Dala LLP at their carrying amounts. In accordance
with the agreement between the shareholders of JV Betpak Dala LLP and NAC KAP, a new
Company — Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP was incorporated, and NAC KAP
transferred the Coniracts and sold the mine development assets at their carrying amounts. During
2014 JV Betpak Dala LLP retained its ownership of property, plant and equipment for extraction and
primary processing of uranium ore, and provided uranium extraction and primary processing services
under the service contracts to the Company. In 2015, based on the decision of the Company’s
participants, the production assets were acquired from JV Betpak Dala LILP according to the sale-
purchase agreement dated 1 October 2015,

As at the reporting date, the Company’s principal activity is extraction and primary processing of
uranium ore. Uranium ore is produced using the in-situ leaching method at the Company’s block 4
of Inkai deposit and Akdala deposit located in South-Kazakhstan Oblast. Commercial production on
block 4 of Inkai deposit and Akdala deposit started in 2004 and 2009, respectively. The Company
produces its final product (U308) at the processing facilities located at South Inkai mine with
capacity about 3,000 tons per year.

The Company’s participants are NAC KAP and Uranium One Rotterdam B.V. that own 30% and
70% interests in the Company, respectively.

The Company's registered office is: apart. 36, h. 23, microdistrict 1, Kyzemshek Village, Suzaksky
District, South-Kazakhstan Oblast, 161006, Republic of Kazakhstan.

Export of uranium from Kazakhstan is regulated by a respective export license. The Government of
the Republic of Kazakhstan represented by the Committee for Atomic and Energetic Supervision and
Control under the Ministry of Energy (hereinafter, the “MoE”) and Ministry of Environment
Protection and Water Resources and other authorised bodies exercise control over the operations,
export and import of uranium products in Kazakhstan,

As at 31 December 2018 the Company’s average annual number of employees was 843
(31 December 2017: 868).

Kazakhstan business environment

The Company’s operations are primarily located in Kazakhstan. Consequently, the Company is
exposed to the economic and financial markets of Kazakhstan which display characteristics of an
emerging market. The legal, tax and regulatory frameworks continue development, but are subject
to varying interpretations and frequent changes which together with other legal and fiscal
impediments contribute to the challenges faced by entities operating in Kazakhstan. In addition, the
depreciation of the Kazakhstan tenge which took place during 2015, and a reduction in the global
price of oil, have increased the level of uncertainty in the business environment. The financial
statements reflect management’s assessment of the impact of the Kazakhstan business environment
on the operations and the financial position of the Company. The future business environment may
differ from management’s assessment.

10
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Basis of accounting
Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”).

This is the first set of the Company’s annual financial statements in which IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments have been applied. Changes to
significant accounting policies are described in Note 3(a).

Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes realisation
of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. As at 31 December 2018 the
Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by KZT 6,959,924 thousand
(2017: KZT 15,101,263 thousand).

As at 31 December 2018 the Company had dividends payable of KZT 27,800,640 thousand
(2017: KZT 33,076,888 thousand).

In 2018 the General Meeting of the Participants made a decision to distribute 100% of net income
for 2017 of KZT 18,723,752 thousand (2017: KZT 30,076,888 thousand) among the Company’s
participants, In 2017 for the purpose of distribution of dividends for 2016 the Company planned to
attract bank financing in the amount of USD 95 million to enable the Company to comply with the
dividend payment schedule. The issue of attracting the bank financing was submitted for approval to
the General Meeting of the Participants, which was not held in 2017.

In August 2018 management resumed the work on attracting the bank financing, based on results of
which the Company signed a loan agreement with SB Alfa-Bank JSC on opening of a non-revolving
credit line of USD 20 million for a period of 5 years (Note 19); and in February 2019 the Company
expects to sign a loan agreement with Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan JSC on opening of a revolving
credit line of USD 65 million. Management believes that the participants will keep providing all
necessary support to the Company and will not require immediate payment of dividends until the
bank loans are obtained.

Having assessed the above circumstances, the Company's management have concluded that
application of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation of these financial
statements and there is no material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.
Functional and presentation currency

The national currency of the Republic of Kazakhstan is the Kazakh tenge (“KZT"), which is the
Company’s functional currency and the currency in which these financial statements are presented.
All financial information presented in KZT has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

11
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Basis of accounting, continued
Use of estimates and judgments, continued

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is disclosed o the following notes:

¢ Note 20 — Site restoration provision;

* Note 12 — Mine development asseis.

Critical judgements also relate to the following:

Useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment and mine development assets

The Company assesses the remaining useful lives of these assets at each reporting date, and, if the
assumptions differ from prior periods estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in the
accounting estimate in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors.

The factors affecting the estimated useful lives of mine development assets include the following:

» changes in proved and probable ore reserves;

» differences in the grade and quality of mineral reserves;

¢ changes in the actual commodity prices and their estimated prices used to assess the ore reserves;
» operating issues related to production at the deposits, and

* changes in production, processes, restoration costs, discount rates and currency exchange rates
that may negatively affect the economic viability of uranium ore reserves production.

Any of these changes may impact future depreciation charges and carrying amounts of the capitalised
costs. Management regularly reviews the appropriateness of the useful lives of the assets.
The analysis is based on the current condition of the assets and the estimated period during which
they will continue to generate economic benefits for the Company.

Uranium reserves

Uranium reserves represent a significant factor in the Company’s activity. All reserves’ estimates
involve some degree of uncertainty, depending on the geological and engineering information
available at the estimation date and interpretations thereof. Estimates may be reviewed as a result of
implementation of new projects to improve production, changes in production capacity or changes
in mine development strategy.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment within the next financial year is included in the following notes:

* Note 11 — Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities;

* Notes 20 and 24 — Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingent liabilities, key
assumptions for probability and amount of outflow of resources;

» Note 23(b) — Assessment of allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets.

Significant accounting policies

Except for the cases describe in Note 3(a), the accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

Changes in significant accounting policies

The Company has initially applied IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9
Financial Instruments from 1 January 2018. A number of other new standards are also effective from
I January 2018 but they do not have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

12
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued
Changes in significant accounting policies, continued

Due to the transition methods chosen by the Company in applying these standards, comparative
information throughout these financial statements has not been restated to reflect the requirements
of the new standards.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. It replaced 1AS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods
or services. Determining the timing of the transfer of contro] — at a point in time or over time —
requires judgement.

Therefore, IFRS 15 did not have a significant impact, on the timing of revenue recognition of the
Company, its retained ecarnings as at 1 January 2018, statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2018. For additional information about the Company’s accounting
policies relating to revenue recognition, see Note 3(k).

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and
some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces TAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Company has adopted consequential amendments to
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, which are applied to disclosures for 2018 but are not
applied, as a rule, to comparative information.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised
cost, FVOCI and FVTPL. The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on
the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.
IFRS 9 eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and
available for sale.

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in JAS 39 for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a significant effect on the Company’s accounting policies related
to financial liabilities.

For an explanation of how the Company classifies and measures financial instruments, treats
modifications and accounts for related gains and losses under IFRS 9, see Note 3(c).

The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement categories
under IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Company’s
financial assets as at 1 January 2018.

The effect of adopting IFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of financial assets at 1 J anuary 2018 relates
solely to the new impairment requirements for impairment and revaluation of fair value of equity
securities on adoption of the new standard.

13
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued

Changes in significant accounting policies, continued

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, continued

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, continued

Original
Original New carrying New carrying

classification classification amount under amount under
‘000 KZT Note under IAS3¢  under IFRS 9 JAS 39 IFRS 9
Financial assets

FVOCI ~
Available-for-  equity

Equity securities {a) sale instrument 403,617 237,591
Trade and other Loans and
receivables (b) receivables Amortised cost 19,164,796 19,118,312
Cash and cash
equivalents and Lcans and
restricted cash (b) receivables Amortised cost 3,177,424 3,153,286
Total financial assets 22,745,837 22,509,189

{(a) These equity securities represent investments that the Company intends to hold for the long term
for strategic purposes. As permitted by IFRS 9, the Company has designated these investments
at the date of initial application as measured at FVOCL. Unlike IAS 39, the accumulated fair
value reserve related to these investments will never be reclassified to profit or loss.

(b) Trade and other receivables as well as cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash that were
classified as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are now classified at amortised cost. An
increase of KZT 46,484 thousand in the allowance for impairment over these trade and other
receivables and allowance for impairment over cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash of
KZT 24,138 thousand was recognised in opening retained earnings at 1 January 2018 on
transition to IFRS 9.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss® (ECL) model.
The new impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost, contract assets
and debt investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments. Under JFRS 9, credit
losses are recognised earlier than under IAS 39.

For assets in the scope of the IFRS 9 impairment model, impairment losses are generally expected to
increase and become more volatile.

The Company has determined that the application of IFRS 9°s impairment requirements at
1 January 2018 results in an additional allowance for impairment as follows.

‘000 KZT
Loss allowance at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 -
Additional impairment recognised at 1 January 2018 on:

Trade and other receivables 46,484
Restricted cash 23,820
Cash and cash equivalents 318
Loss allowance at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 70,622

Additional information about how the Company measures the allowance for impairment is described
in Note 23(b).
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued
Changes in significant accounting policies, continued
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, continued

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied
refrospectively, except as described below.

— The Company has used an exemption not to restate comparative information for prior periods
with respect to classification and measurement (including impairment) requirements. Therefore,
comparative perieds have not been restated. Differences in the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised in retained
earnings and reserves as at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for
2017 generally reflects rather the requirements of IAS 39 than those of IFRS 9.

— The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that
existed at the date of initial application.

— The determination of the business mode} within which a financial asset is held.

— The designation and revocation of previous designations of certain financial assets and financial
liabilities as measured at FVTPL.

— The designation of certain investments in equity instruments not held for trading as at FVOCL

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currency of the
Company at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at
the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference
between amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for
effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value
are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured based on historical cost are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets — Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost and FVOCI —
equity investment.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets
are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business
model.
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Joint Venture South Mining Chenmical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued

Financial instruments, continued

Classification and subsequent measurement, continued

Financial assets — Policy applicable from 1 January 2018, continued

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

— it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

— its confractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election
is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

Financial assets — Business model assessment: Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset
is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information
is provided to management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice,
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the
sale of the assets;

—  how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

—  the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed;

—  how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

—  the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets — Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest: Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
~ terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;
— prepayment and extension features; and

— terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued
Financial instruments, continued
Classification and subsequent measurement, continued

Financial assets — Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest: Policy applicable from 1 January 2018, continued

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of
the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual
par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents
the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include
reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion
if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses: Policy applicable from
1 January 2018

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
amortised cost interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss,

Equity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
FVOCI recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets — Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

The Company classified its financial assets into one of the following categories:
— loans and receivables; and

— available for sale.

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses: Policy applicable before
1 January 2018

Loans and receivables Measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Available-for-saie Measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses,
financial assets interest income and foreign currency differences on debt instruments, were

recognised in OCIL. When these assets were derecognised, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity was reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is also recognised in profit or loss.

Modification of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different (referred to as
‘substantial modification®), then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset
are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new
financial asset is recognised at fair value.
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued

Financial instruments, continued

Modification of financial assets and financial liabilities, continued
Financial assets, continued

The Company performs a quantitative and qualitative evaluation of whether the modification is
substantial, i.e. whether the cash flows of the original financial asset and the modified or replaced
financial asset are substantially different. The Company assesses whether the modification is
substantial based on quantitative and qualitative factors in the following order: qualitative factors,
quantitative factors, combined effect of qualitative and quantitative factors. If the cash flows are
substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset
deemed to have expired. In making this evaluation the Company analogizes to the guidance on the
derecognition of financial liabilities.

The Company concludes that the modification is substantial as a result of the following qualitative
factors:

e change the currency of the financial asset;
e change in collateral or other credit enhancement;

¢ change of terms of financial asset that lead to non-compliance with SPPI criterion (e.g. inclusion
of conversion feature).

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different, then
the modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The gross carrying
amount of the financial asset is recalculated as the present value of the renegotiated or modified
contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. Any
costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortised
over the remaining term of the modified financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of
the modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in
profit or loss.

If a modification (or exchange) does not result in the derecognition of the financial liability
the Company applies accounting policy consistent with the requirements for adjusting the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset when a modification does not result in the derecognition of the
financial asset, i.e. the Company recognises any adjustment to the amortised cost of the financial
liability arising from such a modification (or exchange) in profit or loss at the date of the modification
(or exchange).

Changes in cash flows on existing financial liabilitics are not considered as modification, if they
result from existing contractual terms.

The Company assesses whether the modification is substantial based on quantitative and qualitative
factors in the following order: qualitative factors, quantitative factors, combined effect of qualitative
and quantitative factors. The Company concludes that the modification is substantial as a result of
the following qualitative factors:

s change the currency of the financial liability;
e change in collateral or other credif enhancement;
» inclusion of conversion feature;

e change the subordination of the financial liability.
18
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued

Financial instruments, continued

Modification of financial assets and financial liabilities, continued
Financial liabilities, continued

For the guantitative assessment the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value
of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability. If an exchange of debt instruments
or modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are
recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or modification is rot
accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the
liability and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of
financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legal right to offset the amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Charter capital

Charter capital is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to increases in charter
capital are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Mine development costs
Acguisition cost

Mine development costs are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The Company incurs costs related to finding mineral resources on unexplored blocks of the Deposits.
These costs are capitalised as exploration and evaluation assets until the reserve evaluation is
completed. Once the technical feasibility and commercial viability of the project is demonstrable,
costs associated with the exploration and evaluation activities including exploratory drilling,
topographical, geological and geophysical studies and a pilot plant operation to develop uranium
processing technology and confirm the economic feasibility of the project, are tested for impairment
and reclassified to development assets.
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued
Mine development costs, continued
Acquisition cost, continued

The Company also incurs costs to prepare the mining area for commercial extraction of uranium on
producing blocks. These costs include costs directly attributable to construction of injection,
pumping, inspection and exploratory wells, wells sub-drilling, surface infrastructure of the well field,
including piping, solutions distribution units, infield roads, reagents piping racks ctc. These well field
costs are recognised as tangible mine development costs.

Amortisation

Amortisation commences on the start of commercial extraction of uranium. Intangible development
costs are amortised using the unit-of-production method based on the recoverable reserves on the
deposit to which the assets relate. Tangible mine development costs related to certain block are
amortised using the unit-of-production method based on the current extraction and available reserves
on this block, determined during the initial exploration and further exploration carried out during the
process of well field construction. Tangible mine development costs related to the entire deposit are
amortised using the units-of-production method based on the reserves of the deposit, which are
planned to be extracted during the Contract’s terms. The unit-of-production method is calculated as
a proportion to the amount of reserves extracted.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and
transfer the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalised borrowing costs.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part
of that equipment.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and is
recognised net within other income/other expenses in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the component will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date that they are installed and are
ready for use, or in respect of internally constructed assets, from the date that the asset is completed
and ready for use. Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its estimated residual value.

Buildings and constructions related to the facilities of the mining and industrial complex are
depreciated using the unit-of production method based on proven reserves. Equipment that is
inseparable from the buildings and constructions is also depreciated using the unit-of production
method. However, the straight-line method of depreciation is applied to those machinery and
equipment, which are available at the mine but which are used individually, are transportable and
may be relocated to other places for operations.
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued
Property, plant and equipment, continued

Depreciation, continued

Depreciation is generally recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives for other machinery and equipment, transport vehicles and other items of property, plant and
equipment, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property, plant and equipment for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Buildings and constructions unit-of-production method;
Residential buildings 20 years;

Machinery and equipment 3-10 years;

Vehicles 5-10 years;

Other 3-7 years.

Depreciation methods, expected useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted if appropriate.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based
on the weighted average cost principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing
location and condition.

In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of
production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.

Impairment

Non-derivative financial assets

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on
- financial assets measured at amortised cost;

- equity investments measured at FVOCL

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for
the following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade and other receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking information.
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued
Impairment, continued

Non-derivative financial assets, continued

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018, continued
Financial instruments, continued

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse
by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent
to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’. The Company considers this to be Baa3
or higher per Moody’s or BBB- or higher per Standard and Poor’s.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the
12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.
Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- abreach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties,
Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCI.

22



H

HIFIRRFIR T

¥ 5wl vl
el bl Ul

i wa

WO W OW Wl We oW W E R W E e E

i

WO

Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued

Impairment, continued

Non-derivative financial assers, continued

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position, continued
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For corporate
customers, the Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of
write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no
significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could
still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for
recovery of amounts due.

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018
Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets not classified as at FVTPL were assessed at each reporting date to determine whether
there was objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence that financial assets were impaired included:
- default or delinquency by a debtor;

- restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

- indications that a debtor or issuer would enter bankruptey;
- adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers;
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or

- observable data indicating that there was a measurable decrease in the expected cash flows from
a group of financial assets.

For an investment in an equity instrument, objective evidence of impairment included a significant
or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost.

Financial The Company considered evidence of impairment for these assets at an individual asset
assets level. An impairment loss was calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying
measured at amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s

amortised cost | original effective interest rate. Losses were recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an
allowance account. When the Company considered that there were no realistic prospects
of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts were written off. If the amount of impairment
loss subsequently decreased and the decrease was related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss.

Available-for- | Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets were recognised in profit or loss.
sale financial The amount was the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
assets repayment and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for
an investment in an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale were not reversed
through profit or loss.

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if
objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset,
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can
be estimated reliably.
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued

Impairment, continued

Non-devivative financial assets, continued

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018, continued

Non-derivative financial assets, continued

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include:

- default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that
the Company would not consider otherwise;

- indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptey;
- economic terms, correlated with defaults;
~  the disappearance of an active market for security, or

- observable data indicating that there is measurable decrease in expected cash flows from a group
of financial assets.

In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value
below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

Available-for-sale financial assets

The Company considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an individual asset and a
collective level. All individually significant assets are individually assessed for impairment. Those
found not to be impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but
not yet identified.

Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping
together assets with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment the Company uses historical trends of the probability of default,
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to
whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater
or less than suggested by historical trends.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between an asset’s carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss
and reflected in an allowance account. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment
loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot
be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU,

Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilised by more than one
unit, generating cash flow. Corporate assets are allocated to CGU on a reasonable and consistent
basis and tested for impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which the corporate asset is
allocated.
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued
Impairment, continued
Non-financial assets, continued

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of the
cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the CGU (group of CGUs), and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU
(group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Company does not incur any expenses in relation to provision of pensions or other post-
employment benefits to employees. In accordance with the State pension social insurance
regulations, the Company withholds pension contributions from employee salaries and transfers them
into pension funds. Once the pension contributions have been paid, the Company has no further
pension obligations. Upon retirement of employees, all pension payments are administrated by the
pension fund directly.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under
short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of discount is recognised as finance
cost.

Site restoration

Mining operations of the Company are subject to various environmental laws and regulations.
The Company estimates the provision for site restoration obligation based on management’s
understanding of the current legal requirements and terms of the Contract. Provision is determined
based on net present value of site restoration costs when such liability arises. The actual costs
incurred in future may substantially differ from the provision amount. Future amendment of
environmental laws and regulations, field valuation terms and discount rates may also affect the
carrying amount of the provision.

Revenue
Sale of finished goods

Customers obtain control of finished goods when the goods are delivered to and have been accepted
at the destination point. The destination point under the contract is the customer’s warehouse, the
seller’s warehouse, a convertor or a processing factory. Invoices are generated at this point in time.
Invoices are usually payable within 30-60 days,
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued

Revenue, continued

Sale of finished goods, continued

Revenue recognition under IFRS 15 (applicable from 1 January 2018)

All contracts on sale of finished goods have one performance obligation. Revenue is recognised at
a point of time when the goods have been delivered and accepted at the customer’s warehouse,
the seller’s warehouse, a convertor or a processing factory.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. According
to IFRS 15, revenue is recognised on these contracts to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

Based on its assessment, the Company also believes that its existing contracts with customers do not
contain a significant financing component as there is no difference between the transaction price and
the price that would have been paid for the uranium if the customer had paid cash for the finished
goods when they are transferred to the customer (i.c. their cash selling price); and there is no
significant impact from the period between the moment when the obligation is performed and the
moment when the payment is made.

Revenue recognition under JAS 18 (applicable before 1 January 2018)

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists,
usually in the form of an executed sales agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the
associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing
management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The timing of the transfers of risks and rewards varies depending on the individual terms of the sales
agreement. For sales of uranium, the transfer of risks and rewards usually occurs when uranium is
delivered to a convertor, certain processing factory or warehouse specified in the agreement,

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years. Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from
dividends.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different taxable entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies, continued
New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2019 and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements. The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a
significant impact on the Company’s operations. The Company plans to adopt these pronouncements
when they become effective.

o IFRS 16 Leases
The Company is required to adopt IFRS 16 Leases from 1 January 2019.

IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for shori-term leases and
leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard — i.e. lessors
continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.

IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

Transition

The Company plans to apply IFRS 16 initially on 1 January 2019, using the modified retrospective
approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS 16 will be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2019, with no restatement of comparative
information.

The Company plans to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease on
transition. This means that it will apply IFRS 16 to all contracts entered into before 1 January 2019
and identified as leases in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

The Company is completing assessment of impact on its financial statements resulting from the
application of IFRS 16. The new Standard is not expected to have a significant effect on the financial
statements of the Company,

¢  Other standards

The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact
on the Company’s financial statements,

- IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Tax Treatments;
~  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle — various standards;

- Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards.

Determination of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair
value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined
for measurement and for disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable,
further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes
specific to that asset or liability.

Trade and other receivables and loans issued

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. Fair value of trade and other receivable
with short maturity does not differ much from the carrying amount as the impact of the time value of
money is insignificant.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Fair value of non-derivative financial liabilities, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is
calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the
market rate of interest at the reporting date. Management believes that fair value of the financial asset
and liabilities of the Company approximates their carrying amount,
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Revenue

The impact of the initial application of IFRS 15 on the Company's revenue from contracts with
customers is described in Note 3(a). Due to the transition method chosen by the Company in applying
IFRS 15, comparative information was not restated in to reflect requirements of the new standard.

‘000 KZT 2018 2017

Sale of uranium oxide 54,055,510 51,179,291
Other revenue 194 1,833
Revenue from contracts with customers 54,055,704 51,181,124

During 2018, the Company sold 88% and 12% of uranium produced to “Uranium One Inc.” (Canada)
and NAC KAP (Kazakhstan), respectively (2017: 72% and 28% - to “Uranium One Inc.” and
NAC KAP, respectively). The entire revenue was recognised at a certain point in time, when the
products were delivered to the customers.

The Company concludes contracts with customers for a period of | year for an approximate volume
of planned shipments. Uranium selling prices are determined on the basis of the arithmetic weighted
average value of spot prices adjusted for discounts agreed by the parties. The Company determined
that each shipment represent one performance obligation and revenue thereon is recognised when the
goods have been delivered to and accepted on the territory agreed on in the contracts.

The Company may also have a performance obligation to store and/or transport the goods to the
specified destination after sales of the goods; however, due to short-term nature of such obligations
and insignificance of costs related to such obligations, the Company considers that revenue from
such services is insignificant and, therefore, does not separate the performance obligation under such
contracts.

Cost of sales

‘000 KZT 2018 2017
Raw materials and consumables 7,451,608 8,464,241
Taxes (including mineral extraction tax) 4,098,828 4,531,757
Depreciation of mine development assets 3,187,460 4,345,385
Wages and salaries 2,680,915 2,527,942
Depreciation and amortisation 1,943,690 2,208,219
Third party services 956,609 890,812
Vacation and bonus accruals 388,286 361,427
Salary related taxes 381,265 359,473
Depreciation of exploration costs 343,931 505,872
Repair and technical maintenance 169,077 104,278
Ion-exchange resin 122,248 128,281
Depreciation of site restoration assets 28,227 223,661
Other 476,315 360,620
22,228.302 25,011,968

Distribution expenses

‘000 KZT 2018 2017
Transportation expenses on finished goods 1,554,938 1,055,003
Wages and salaries 29,470 29,547
Salary related taxes 2,970 3,238
Other 15,627 16,423
1,603,005 1,104,211
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Administrative expenses

‘000 KZT

Wages and salaries

Third party services

Salary related taxes

Depreciation and amortisation

Membership fee

Raw materials and consumables

Accrual of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables
Vacation and bonus accruals

Other

Personnel costs

‘000 KZT

Wages and salaries

Social tax and social contributions
Obligatory professional pension contributions
Obligatory social security contributions

Finance income and costs

‘000 KZT

Interest income on deposits
Net foreign exchange gain
Finance income

Unwinding of discount on provisions (Note 20)

Interest and other finance expense on loans and borrowings
Unwinding of discount on historical costs liability

Interest expense on other financial liabilities

Net foreign exchange loss

Finance costs

Net finance income/(costs) recognised in profit or loss

Income tax expense

2018 2017
488,039 445,168
268,545 240,815

47,144 48,598
37,072 46,924
14,975 10,445
14,262 22,920
5,503 -
(889) 33,999
89,569 61,757
964,220 910,626
2018 2017
3,526,476 3,494,711
290,261 325,938
93,919 103,355
39,211 12,497
3,949,867 3,936,501
2018 2017
239,566 158,895
1,909,021 -
2,148,587 158,895
(232,059) (158,681)
(20,301) -
(1,156) (3,784)
- (4,650)
- (19,014)
(253,516) (186,129)
1,895,071 (27,234)

In 2018, the Company’s applicable tax rate is the income tax rate of 20% for Kazakhstan companies.

‘000 KZT 2018 2017
Current tax expense
Current income tax 6,593,546 5,210,865
Adjustments for prior years (289,773) -
Deferred tax benefit
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (241,225) (124,928)
6,062,548 5,085,937
Reconciliation of effective tax rate:
2017

‘000 KZT Yo ‘000 KZT %
Profit before income tax 30,978,231 100.0 23,809,689 100.0
Income tax at applicable tax rate 6,195,646 20.0 4,761,938 20.0
Non-deductible expenses 156,675 0.5 323,999 1.4
Adjustments for prior years (289,773) {0.9) - -

6,062,548 19.6 5,085,937 21.4
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Income tax expense, continued

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Under the current tax legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan, the Company is obligated to maintain
separate tax accounting records of the contractual and non-contractual activities. The taxable income
for the contractual operations is determined based on the amount of extracted uranium and taxable
income from non-contractual activity is determined as a positive difference between the income in
the financial statements and income from contractual operations.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

‘000 KZT
Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Site restoration asset

Historical costs asset
Vacation and bonus accruals
Historical cost liability
Taxes

Site restoration provision
Impairment loss allowances
Other payables

Movement in temporary differences during the year

‘000 KZT

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Site restoration asset
Historical costs asset
Vacation and bonus accruals
Historical cost liability
Taxes

Site restoration provision
Impairment loss allowances
Other payables

‘060 KZT

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Site restoration asset
Historical costs asset
Vacation and bonus accruals
Historical costs liability
Taxes

Site restoration provision
Impairment loss allowances
Other payables

Assets Liabilities Net
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
- - (18,695 (17,877) (18,695) (17,877)
- - (168,326) (206,121) (168,326) (206,121)
- - (103,113)  (32.619) (103,113) (32,619)
- - (23,323)  (25,691) (23,323)  (25,691)
50,545 49,988 - - 50,545 49,988
- 10,744 - - - 10,744
477,357 243,697 - - 477357 243,697
180,100 127,565 - - 180,100 127,565
26,334 28,655 - - 26,334 28,655
4,674 5,987 - - 4,674 5,987
739,010 466,636  (313,457) (282,308) 425,553 184,328
1 January Recognised in 31 December
2018 profit or loss 2018
(17,877) (818) (18,695)
(206,121) 37,795 (168,326)
(32,619) (70,4594) (103,113)
(25,691) 2,368 (23,323)
49,988 557 50,545
10,744 (10,744) -
243,697 233,660 477,357
127,565 52,535 180,100
28,655 (2,321) 26,334
5,987 (1,313) 4,674
184,328 241,225 425,553
1 January Recognised in 31 December
2017 prefit or loss 2017
(9,725) (8,152) (17.877)
(232,002) 25,881 {206,121)
(257.853) 225,234 (32,619)
(30,013) 4,322 (25,651)
38,136 11,852 49,988
30,960 (20,216) 10,744
142,863 100,834 243,697
341,369 (213,804) 127,565
35,665 (7,010) 28,655
- 5,987 5,987
59,400 124,928 184,328
30
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 201 8

14 Restricted cash

15

16

17

‘000 KZT 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Liquidation fund deposit 2,260,414 1,923,540
Cash pledged 1,000 -
2,261,414 1,923,540
Impairment loss allowance (28 497) -
2,232,922 1,923,540

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and risk of impairment losses related to
financial assets are disclosed in Note 23.

Inventories
‘600 KZT 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Finished goods 2,198,528 2,605,351
Raw materials and consumables 1,251,022 1,151,458
Work-in-progress 672,295 798,005
Impairment loss allowance (121,669) (143,273)
4,000,176 4,411,541
Trade and other receivables
‘000 KZT 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Trade receivables from related parties 18,726,987 19,002,656
Other receivables 215,128 162,140
18.942.115 19,164,796
Impairment loss allowance (8,326) -
Total financial assets 18,933,789 19,164,796
VAT receivable 988,822 2,673,206
Other recejvables 73.860 81,524
Total non-financial assets 1,062,682 2,754,730
19,996,471 21,919,526
As at 31 December, trade and other receivables were denominated in the following currencies:
‘000 KZT 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
USD 18,137,838 12,630,490
KZT 1,858,633 9,289,036
19,996,471 21,919,526

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and risk of impairment losses related to
financial assets are disclosed in Note 23.

Cash and cash equivalents

‘000 KZT 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Cash on current bank accounts — KZT 3,077,711 1,057,475
Cash on current bank accounts — USD 2,313,503 196,409
5,391,214 1,253,884
Impairment loss allowance {1,673) -
5,389,541 1,253,884

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks. and risk of impairment losses related to
financial assets are disclosed in Note 23.
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Equity
Equity
31 December 31 December

‘000 KZT 2018 Ownership 2017 Ownership
Uraninm One Rotterdam B.V, 44 800 70% 44,800 T0%
NACKAP 19,200 30% 19,200 30%

64,000 100% 64,000 100%
Dividends

In accordance with Kazakhstan legislation the Company’s distributable reserves are limited to the
balance of retained earnings as recorded in the Company’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS. As at 31 December 201 8, the Company’s distributable reserves amounted to
KZT 24,845,061 thousand (2017: KZT 18,723,752 thousand).

During 2018 the General Meeting of the Participants decided to distribute 100% of the net profit for
2017 in the amount of KZT 18,723,752 thousand among the Company’s participants. The amount of
KZT 24,000,000 thousand of the distributed net profits for 2015-2016 was partially repaid to the
participants during 2018, in proportion to their interests. As at 31 December 201 8, dividends payable
amounted to KZT 27,800,640 thousand, of which KZT 9,076,888 thousand relate to 2016 and
KZT 18,723,752 thousand relate to 2017.

Other reserves

Other reserves comprise the cumulative net changes in fair value of equity securities designated per
Company’s discretion at FEVOCI on transition to IFRS 9 (2017: available-for-sale financial assets).
The amount of adjustment as at 1 J anuary 2018 represents the effect of change in the fair value of
investment in Uranenergo LLP as a result of adoption of IFRS 9.

Loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Company’s interest-bearing loans
and borrowings, which are measured at amortised cost. For more information about the Company’s
exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risk, see Note 23.

‘000 KZT 31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Non-current liabilifies

Secured loan from $B Alfa-Bank JSC 4,468,853 -
4,468,853 -

Current liabilities

Current portion of secured loan from SB Alfa-Bank JSC 525,747 -

Interest payable 3,191 -

528,938 -

Terms and debt repayment schedule

Terms and conditions of outstanding loans were as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Nominal

interest Year of Carrying Carrying
‘000 KZT Currency rate, % maturity Face value amount Face value amount
Secured loan from
SB Alfa-Bank JSC UsD 4.6 2023 4,994 600 4,997,791 - -
Total interest liabilities 4,994,600 4,997,791 - -

During 2018, the Company entered into a loan agreement for a long-term bank facility of
USD 20 million at a rate of 4.6% per annum with maturity in 2023. Under this loan agreement, on
26 December 2018 the Company received the first tranche of USD 13 million (equivalent to
KZT 4,824,040 thousand). The Company pledged cash on its current account of KZT 1,000 thousand
as collateral under this loan facility. In addition, in 2019 the Company has to pledge future cash
inflows under the sales contract with NAC KAP.
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19 Loans and borrowings, continued

20

21

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Liabilities

Loans and Other financial
‘000 KZT borrowings liabilities (Note 22)
Balance at 1 January 2018 - 4,624,910
Changes from financing cash fiows
Proceeds from borrowings 4,824,040 -
Transaction costs related to loans and borrowings (14,843) -
Repayment of borrowings - (4,624,138)
Total changes from financing cash flows 4,809,197 (4,624,138)
The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 170,560 -
Other changes
Liability related
Interest expense 18,034 2,267
Interest paid (inciuding withholding tax in the amount of
KZT 455 thousand) - (3,039
Total liability-related other changes 18,034 (772)
Balance at 31 December 2018 4,997,791 -
Site restoration provision
‘000 KZT 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
At the beginning of the year 2,561,365 2,131,880
Change in estimate (Note 12) 367,488 270,804
Unwinding of discount (Note 10) 232,059 158,681
At the end of the year 3,160,912 2,561,365

In accordance with the Contracts, the Company will incur site restoration costs in future. The
expected future cash flows were discounted to the net present value using a nominal risk-free
discount rate of 7.45% (2017: 9.06%) including estimated inflation rate of 5.30% (2017: 5.40%). It

is expected that the major part of expenses will be incurred during the period of 2020-2027, at the
end of the production life of the Deposits.

The Company is also obliged to hold cash on a long-term bank deposit to finance future site
reclamation works in accordance with the Contract (Note 14).

In view of the long-term nature of reclamation liabilities, there is uncertainty concerning the actual

amount of expenses that will be incurred in performing the site restoration activities and discount
rate used to present value of these future obligations.

Trade and other payables

‘000 KZT 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Trade payables to third parties 2,949,075 1,294,758
Taxes payable 2,685,272 1,384,866
Trade payables to related parties 651,945 1,088,244
Current portion of historical cost liabilities - 53,721
Other payables 800,893 753,293
7,087,185 4,574,882

As at 31 December 2018 the Company has fully repaid to the Government of the Republic of
Kazakhstan the historical cost liability according to the contracts on subsoil use of the deposits
(2017: the Company’s liability amounted to USD 161,649). The liability was recognised by
discounting the present value of future cash outflows at a discount rate of 3.3% p-a. (2017: 3.3%).

As at 31 December 2018 taxes payable include a commercial discovery bonus payable in the amount
of KZT 1,239,109 thousand accrued as a result of increase in uranium reserves on block 4 of Inkai
deposit by 43,376 tons in 2018,
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In December 2014, the Company issued 5 notes in the total amount of KZT 14,321,421 thousand in

favour of NAC KAP. They were issued as a settlement for the mine development assets acquired
from NAC KAP.

In 20135, the claim right of the notes has been reassigned to JV Betpak Dala LLP, the previous owner
of the Contracts. During 2015 and 2016, KZT 5,321,421 thousand and KZT 6,000,000 thousand
were paid to JV Betpak Dala LLP under these notes, respectively.

In October 2015, the Company issued the notes in the total amount of KZT 18,311,932 thousand to
JV Betpak Dala LLP for production and other assets, including VAT of KZT 2,197,432 thousand.
During 2016, the Company issued the notes in the amount of KZT 1,884,307 thousand, including
VAT of KZT 193,678 thousand., During 2016, the notes totalling to KZT 18,471,805 thousand were

paid. During 2017, the Company settled the notes in the amount of KZT 100,296 thousand. During
2018, the remaining debt was repaid in full.

Financial instruments

The main risks inherent in the Company's daily operations are currency risk, interest rate risk and
credit risk. The Company does not use hedging instruments to minimise those risks,

Overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
e credit risk;

¢ liquidity risk;

¢ market risk.

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s

management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial
statements.

Risk management framework

The Supervisory Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The Company has not established a Risk Management
Committee that is why the management is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s
risk management policies. Management reports regularly to the Supervisory Board on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by
the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed re gularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Company’s activities. The Company, through their training and management standards and
procedures, aim to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.

Financial instruments of the Company comprise receivables, payables, loans and borrowings and
cash. The Company’s accounting policy with regard to the financial instruments is disclosed in
Note 3(c). The Company does not use financial instruments for speculative transactions and does not
use the derivative financial instruments for hedging risks exposure.

The exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk arise in the normal course of business of
the Company.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s
receivables from customers.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure.
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Credit risk, continued
Credif risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

‘000 KZT 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Trade receivables 18,721,484 19,002,656
Other receivables 212,305 162,140
Restricted cash 2,232,922 1,923,540
Cash and cash equivalents 5,389,541 1,253,884
26,556,252 22,342,220

Trade and other receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. Total Company’s revenue is attributable to sales transactions with two buyers. Details of
concentration of revenue are included in Note 5.

100% of the Company’s customers have been shareholders and clients of the Company for over four
years, and none of these customers’ balances have been written off or are credit-impaired at the
reporting date.

A summary of the Company’s exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables is as follows:

‘000 KZT 31 December 2018 31 December 2018
Not credit-impaired Credit-impaired

External credit ratings at Jeast Baa3 from Moody’s or BBB-

from Standard & Poor's 18,726,987 -

Other customers:

— Four or more years’ trading history with the Company 215,128 -

Total gross carrying amount 18,942,115 -

Impairment loss allowance (8,326) -
18,933,789 -

Comparative information under IAS 39

An analysis of the credit quality of trade and other receivables that were nejther past due nor impaired
as at 31 December 2017 is as follows.

‘000 KZT 31 December 2017
Neither past due nor impaired

External credit ratings at least Baa3 from Moody’s or BBB- from Standard & Poor's 19,002,656
Other customers:

— Four or more years’ trading history with the Company 162,140
Total not impaired trade receivables 19,164,796

As at 31 December 2017 trade and other receivables were neither past due nor impaired.
Expected credit loss assessment for corporate customers as at 1 January and 31 December 2018

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on data that is determined to be
predictive of the risk of loss (including but not limited to external ratings, audited financial
statements, management accounts and cash flow projections and available press information about
customers) and applying experienced credit judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using
qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default and are aligned to external
oredit rating definitions from agencies Moody’s and Standard & Poor's.

On initial application of IFRS 9, the Company recognised an impairment allowance as at
1 January 2018 in the amount of KZT 46,484 thousand. The amount of the allowance decreased to
EZT 8,326 thousand as at 31 December 2018.
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Credit risk, continued
Trade and other receivables, continued

Expected credit loss assessment for corporate customers as at 1 January and
31 December 2018, continued

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and
other receivables as at 31 December 2018,

31 December 2018
Gross carrying

‘000 KZT amount Lagss allowance
Current (not past due) 18,942,115 (8,326)

18,942.115 (8,326)
Restricted cash

The Company held restricted cash of KZT 2,261,414 thousand at 3] December 2018
(2017: XZT 1,923,540 thousand) placed with the bank rated BB- based on rating agency
Standard & Poor's ratings (Note 14).

Impairment on restricted cash has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the
short maturities of the exposures, The Company considers that its restricted cash has low credit risk
based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.

On initial application of IFRS 9, the Company recognised an impairment allowance of
KZT 23,820 thousand as at 1 January 2018. The allowance increased to KZT 28,492 thousand as at
31 December 2018.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of KZT 5,391,214 thousand at 31 December 2018
(2017: KZT 1,253,884 thousand). The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks and financial
institutions rated from B- to BB- based on rating agency Standard & Poor's ratings,

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and
reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Company considers that its cash and cash
equivalents have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.

On initial application of IFRS 9, the Company recognised an impairment allowance of
KZT 318 thousand as at 1 January 2018, The allowance increased to KZT 1,673 thousand as at
31 December 2018.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financia] obligations as they
fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will

always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational
expenses for a period of 60 days, including the servicing of financial obligations — in accordance
with the contract term; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot
reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, not including estimated interest
payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements. It is not expected that the cash flows
included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different
amounts. Liquidity of the financial instruments is disclosed on the basis of discounted cash flows of
financial assets and liabilities pursuant to the expected cash inflow (or outflow) date.

38




6¢

- 9P 69L SSLEOY (60S'HLO°LT) (9Z0°1L£°€) (£LS°995°0T) (F65'6¥S8T) uoyisod dduereq JoN

- - (665°L7) (Sot°6ET70¢) 016729 (PI8T68°0P) (PI8°T68°0) 1810,

- - - - (016%29%) 16729 %01°0 (016729 SanIIqe!] [efouBUy JoTi()

- - - (F81°€1T°9¢) - {F81°€1Z°9¢) CERMELENG (€81°¢17°9¢€) a[qeAed spusprarp

Supnjour ‘satqeded rogyo pue ape1y

- - (665°LT) (zz1°97) - (1zL°€%) %0¢'¢ (1zL€6) (uonzod

uaLmo) SanIIqer] 51505 [BOMI0ISIY

:SopIIqeN [eourny

16L°Pp6°T 9T¥'69L PSET6I 96LVOTI"61 PR8EST'T IPT'STE ST 0ZTTHETT ®or

- - - 01291 - 0r1°Z91 3] 38013)0F 0vI°Z91 §3qeATIE08I 1010

- - - 991°ZLED - 991°ZLED 230 3591937 991°ZLE'9 dV3 DVN Woy sajqeareoa oper]

- - - 06+°0£9°T1 - 06+°0£9°C1 220 Jsa101] 067°0£9°Z1 "ouy SUQ

WNUEI) WOy $3[qeAI200I opeI]

16L4¥6C 91+°69L FSETOT - - 195°906°C %001 0FS'ET6'1 sed pajLnsay

- - - - #88°€67°1 P88°EST 1 %290 $BR°EST'1 sjuseainba gseo pue ysey

i§]19sS€ [eOURUIY

SIBA ¢ SIB9A §-T KUEY Y syjuour PURIISP Uy feloy, % LA 353I2)UY mnoure LTOT QUL £V
UEY) 3I0TA ~ SJUow ¢ €0 3AD2310 adeadae Surdare)

PRSI

ETLET'S (195°866°€) (S8E°LoY) (9L8°LTIE%ET) VIT'I6ES (9L£'SST ) (T60PP9°01) uopisod sadue[eq JoN

- {LTL206'D) (97r°c69) (166°65Z°2¢) - (PPI9S8°LE) (FrE007°LE) LaUAR

- (LTL206%) (9Z+°¢69) (8E¥°LS) - (165°€59°C) %9°¥ (16.°L66') S3UIMOIIOg puE SuEO"]

- - (€£55°20Z°CE) - (£55°707°2€) 931 J5019uf {€5s°707°2E) s1qeAed spusprarp

w&vﬁoﬁ ‘sajqeded 130 pue 9peI]

SAPMQEN [eduRUL]

IET'LETE 991°v06 140°97Z SIT‘TP6'8I VIT'16€°S 89L°00L°8T IS7°055°97 e30

- - - 8TI°SIZ - 8TISIT 291 Jsaray SOETIT S9[qeAle0al YOI

- - - €OLP8S - €0LP8S 9913 1521031 9r9°¢8s dV> DVN Woy sa[qearsoar aper]

- - - rTTHI8I - ¥R THI‘SI 93] 1sarejuL 8€8LE1°81 "ou] JuQ

Es.ﬁ:ﬁ N Eo@ muz.mimoou ovmﬁm

TET'LET'E 99106 #0922 - - 6EVLIE'Y %0°01 7T6'TET'T Sed pajoLnsay

- - - - PITI6E°S YIZTT6E'C %80 I¥5°68¢°s SiuaTeaInba yseo pue gser)

18}988B —N_unﬂﬁmh

SIvak < CRTETN ¢ 1 Jeak 1 Sy jmoax m:-u:.—mﬁ HO —N«Q.H .Xu Jjer aw@h@uﬂm junouwe 8167 h&QEUUOQ 1€V
uer; 0.52 ~ S uew £ €0 a>ﬁua.ﬂ& vm_wuohu mﬁh.ﬂﬁo

POIYSIoA

panuyuos s Aypnbry

©)

ponunuod nwwﬂesﬁ—hﬁwﬁm —&moﬂwﬂwﬁ €T
8107 42quua05q [ ¢ papus wad aupp 40f spuowsnyg 1DIUDULLT 24} 0F $270N
dTT duvduo) porunyy Sutupgy yinog a4mua g wzop

WTHTRTL TR IR W) DR RO M O W W W M WM M MR m o om oo e e e — e



i

g

Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements Jfor the year ended 31 December 2018

23 Financial instruments, continued

)

(e)

@

(i)

Capital and financial risk management

The Company manages capital to ensure the continued operations. The capital structure of the
Company comprises the Company’s equity (including the issued stock, retained earnings). The
Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. Management reviews the capital
structure on the annual basis. Based on the review results the Company takes measure to balance the
entire capital structure through increase of the charter capital

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as spot quotations, foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

The Company neither buys nor sells derivatives, no incurs financial liabilities, in order to manage

market risks. The Company does not apply special hedge accounting in order to manage volatility in
profit or loss,

Market price risk

The Company is exposed to the effect of fluctuations in the price of uranium, which is quoted in US
Dollars on the international markets. The Company prepares an annual budget in respect of various
levels of uranium prices in the future. Uranium prices historically fluctuate and are affected by
numerous factors outside of the Company’s control, including, but not limited to, levels of natural
uranium production, depleting levels of secondary sources such as recycling and blended down
highly enriched stocks available to close the gap of the excess demand over supply, regulations by
International Atomic Energy Agency and other factors related specifically to uranium.

At the reporting date there was no significant impact of commodity price risk on financial assets and
liabilities recognised by the Company.

The Company does not hedge its exposure to the risk of fluctuations in the price of uranium.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between currencies
in which sales, purchases and borrowings are denominated and the respective functional currency of
the Company. The currency in which these transactions primarily are denominated is US Dollars.

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Company’s
policy is to ensure that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances,

Exposure to currency risk
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts:

USD-denominated USD-denominated
‘0 KZT 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Cash and cash equivalents 2,313,503 196,409
Accounts receivable 18,137,838 12,630,490
Accounts payable - (2,492)
Loans and borrowings (4,997,791) -
Historical costs liability (53,721)

Net exposure 15,453,550 12,770,686
The following exchange rates applied during the year:

Reporting date Reporting date
KZT Average rate spot rate Average rate spot rate
2018 2018 2017 2017
UsD 1 344.71 384.20 326.00 33233
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Market risk, continued
Currency risk, continued
Sensitivity analysis

Weakening of KZT, as indicated below, against USD at 31 December would have increased profit
net of taxes by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate
variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

‘000 KZT Profit or loss

Strengthening of KZT Weakening of KZT
31 December 2018
KZT/USD (20% movement) (2,472,568) 2,472,568
‘000 KZT Profit or loss

Strengthening of KZT Weakening of KZT
31 December 2017
KZT/USD (20% movement) (2,043,310) 2,043,310

Interest rate risk

Changes in interest rates impact primarily other financial liabilities, by changing either their fair
value (fixed rate debt) or their future cash flows (variable rate debt). Management does not have a
formal policy of determining how much of the Company’s exposure should be to fixed or variable
rates. However, at the time of raising new loans or borrowings management uses its judgement to
decide whether it believes that a fixed or variable rate would be more favourable to the Company
over the expected period until maturity.

Profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments
was:

Fixed rate instruments Carrying ameunt Carrying amount
‘000 KZT 2018 2017
Restricted cash (Note 14) 2,232,922 1,923,540
Loans and borrowings (Note 19) (4,997,791) -
Other financial liabilities (Note 22) - {4,624,510)
(2,764,869) (2,701,370)

Fair value sensitivity analysis Jor fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial instruments as fair value through profit
or loss or as available-for-sale. Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not
have an effect in profit or loss or in equity.

Fair value

Management believes that the fair value of its financial assets and liabilities approximates their

carrying amounts. Fair values have been determined for measurement and disclosure purposes based
on the following methods.

Fair value hierarchy
The different levels have been defined as follows:
* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices);

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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Fair value, continued
Fair value hierarchy, continued

Before 1 January 2018 the Company held equity securities categorised as available-for-sale under
IAS 39. Starting from 1 J anuary 2018 these securities have been categorised as measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income under IFRS 9 (see Note 3(a)).

The Company owns 7.07% interest in Uranenergo LLP which is not listed on a stock exchange and
this investment is accounted for ag investment at fair value through other comprehensive income

Commitments and contingencies

Taxation contingencies

Transfer pricing law

A new transfer pricing law was enacted as at 1 January 2009. As before, the new law applies to cross-
border transactions involving sales of goods and services. In addition, the transfer pricing law applies
to in-country sales and purchases of goods and services, if these transactions are determined to be
effected not at arm’s length.

are now entitled to review prices under any transaction, subject to the negotiated price varies from
the price of transaction on commercia] terms by any percentage. Management of the Company
considers these requirements while assessing its income tax liabilities.

Environmental issues

environmental laws and regulations may change. Such changes, if made, may require the Company
to modernize technology to meet more stringent standards.

Compliance with Work Program

contract or license has expired. These rights may be terminated by the Competent Authority if the
Company fails to meet its contractual obligations.

Under the Work Programs for two deposits approved by the Competent Authority, the contractual
liabilities are denominated in tenge,
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Compliance with Work Program, continued
Social commitments

Training of Kazakhstan specialists

Akdala subsoil use contract

In accordance with the subsocil use contract, the Company is committed to provide financing for
professional education of local staff in the amount not less than 1% of exploration costs during the
exploration period and not less than 0.05% of production costs during the production period.

Subsoil use contract for block 4 of Inkai deposit

In accordance with the subsoil use contract, the Company is committed to provide annual financing
for professional training for local staff in the amount not less than 1% of exploration costs and not
less than 1% of production costs during the production period.

Development of the social sphere
Akdala subsoil use contract

In accordance with the subsoil use contract, the Company is committed to pay an annual amount not
less than USD 75,000 for the social and economic development of the region and its infrastructure
by means of transfer to the budget of the local executive body.

Subsoil use contract for block 4 of Inkai deposit

In accordance with the subsoil use contract, the Company is committed to pay an annual amount not
less than USD 150,000 for the social and economic development of the region and its infrastructure
by means of transfer to the budget of the local executive body.

Management believes that as at 31 December 2018 the Company is in compliance with its
commitments stated in subsoil use contracts.

Site restoration Habilitics

Within two years after transition to the commercial production under the Contracts the Company is
required to provide a reclamation plan for the Deposits to the Competent Authority. To comply with
this requirement the Company approved the site restoration program in 2017. Once the program is
approved by the Competent Authorities, the Company is obligated to comply with it.

Liquidation fund

Pursuant to the Liquidation Program, the Company is obligated to accumulate cash on a special bank
account to meet its site restoration liability related to the obligations to rehabilitate land and make
mines safe after termination of their use, and the estimate costs of cleaning up after any chemical
leakage.

The Company has accumulated cash on a special account with SB Alfa-Bank JSC. This deposit may
be used only for the purpose of site restoration as agreed with the respective authority. As at
31 December 2018 the deposit amounted to KZT 2,231,922 thousand
(2017: KZT 1,923,540 thousand) (Note 14).

Management believes that as at 31 December 2018 the Company is in compliance with its
commitments stated in subsoil use Contracts.

Annual production volume

In accordance with the Contract, the Company is obligated to produce a certain amount of uranjum
per year. An annual output on block 4 of Inkai deposit and Akdala deposit for 2018 was established
at the levels of 2,000 tons and 1,000 tons, respectively. The actual output of the Company in 2018
was 1,617 tons and 800 tons, respectively, taking into account a permitted deviation of 20%
(2017: 1,982 tons and 900 tons, respectively).
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Joint Venture South Mining Chemical Company LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Commitments and contingencies, confinued
Compliance with Work Program, continued
Investments to the mine development assets

Management believes that as at 31 December 2018 the Company is in compliance with its
commitments stated in subsoil use Contracts.

Related parties
Control relationship

Uranium One Rotterdam B.V. is a subsidiary of Uranium One Inc. incorporated in Canada. The
ultimate owner of Uranium One Inc. is Rosatom State Atomic Energy Corporation (“Rosatom™).
NAC CAP produces publicly available financial statements.

Related party transactions

During the year, the Company have made a number of transactions with the related parties:

Purchase of Purchase of
production production
Purchase of and other Purchase of and other
Sales services assets Sales services assets
‘000 KZT 2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017
Shareholders 54,055,510 - - 51,179,291 1,053 860
Companies under
common or joint
control of the
shareholders 5,208 920,567 6,353,880 15,878 966,232 7,067,920

Balance payable/receivable as at the end of the reporting period:

Receivables Trade payables Receivables Trade payables

from related to related from related to related
parties parties parties parties
‘000 KZT 2018 2018 2017 2017
Shareholders 18,721,484 - 19,002,656 964
Companies under
common or joint control
of the shareholders 411 651,945 7,037 1,087,280

In April 2017 JV Betpak Dala LLP transferred to the Company the funds of the accumulated
liquidation fund in the amount of KZT 1,207,320 thousand to finance the site restoration works.

Key management remuneration

‘000 KZT 2018 2017

Salaries and bonuses 71,690 81,853

Contributions to pension funds 4,867 5,748
76,557 87,601

Transactions with government and government-related companies

In the ordinary course of business the Company conducts transactions with government bodies and
companies under control of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan. These transactions were
conducted on the terms, which are comparable with those of other counteragents.
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